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Independent Auditors’ Report
To the Members of Titan Engineering & Automation Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Titan Engineering & Automation Limited (“the Company”),
which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March 2020, the statement of profit and loss (including other
comprehensive income), statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of the significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2020, and profit and other comprehensive income,
changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10)
of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance
with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the
Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the financial statements.

Other Information

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s Director’s Report, but does not include the
financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. The other
information is not made available to us at the date of this auditors’ report. We have nothing to report in this
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Titan Engineering & Automation Limited
Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

Management's and Board of Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5)
of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs, profit/loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company
in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 ofthe Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of
the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application
of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controlsthat were operating
effectively for ensuring accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Management and Board of Directors are responsible for assessing
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
\( 9{ and related disclosures in the financial statements made by the Management and Board of Directors.
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Titan Engineering & Automation Limited
Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.

As required by the Companies (Auditors’ Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government in terms of section 143 (11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

(A) Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books.

¢) The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.

d) Inour opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under section
133 of the Act.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2020 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2020 from
\l 9’ being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.
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Titan Engineering & Automation Limited
Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements (continued)

f) Withrespect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure B”.

(B) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. The disclosures in the financial statements regarding holdings as well as dealings in specified
bank notes during the period from 8 November 2016 to 30 December 2016 have not been made
in these financial statements since they do not pertain to the financial year ended 31 March
2020.

(C) With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditors’ Report under section 197(16):

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration paid
by the company to its directors during the current year is in accordance with the provisions of Section
197 of the Act. The remuneration paid to any director is not in excess of the limit laid down under
Section 197 of the Act. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under
Section 197(16) which are required to be commented upon by us.

forBSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No. 101248W/W-100022

e

Vikash Gupta

Partner

Membership No.: 064597
UDIN: 20064597AAAABS8727

Place: Bengaluru
Date: 28 May 2020
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Titan Engineering & Automation Limited
Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report

In respect of the Annexure A referred to in paragraph 1 of our report to the Members of Titan Engineering
& Automation Limited (‘the Company’) for the year ended 31 March 2020, we report that:

i

ii.

iii.

iv.

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of fixed assets.

(b) The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its fixed assets by which all
fixed assets are verified annually. In our opinion, the periodicity of physical verification is
reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its fixed assets. No material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(¢) Inour opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of
our examination of the records of the Company, the title deed comprising all the immovable
properties of land and buildings which are freehold are held in the name ofthe Company as at the
date of the balance sheet except the following immovable properties:

No. of cases Amount (in lakhs) Remarks
Land - 1 (Located at| Gross block—670 The title deeds of land and the
Muduganapalli) Net block — 670 occupancy certificate of the

buildings are in the name of
Titan Company Limited. The
Company had demerged from
Titan Company Limited
under section 391 to 394 of
the Companies Act, 1956 in
terms of the approval of the
Honourable High Court (s) of
Madras vide order dated 13
February 2017.

Buildings — 2 (Located at| Gross block —6,247
Hosur and Muduganapalli) Net block — 5,486

The inventory, except goods-in-transit and stocks lying with third parties, has been physically verified
by the management during the year. In our opinion, the frequency of such verification is reasonable.
The discrepancies noticed on verification between the physical stock and the book records were not
material. For stocks lying with third parties at the year-end, written confirmations have been obtained

by the Management.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any loans,
secured or unsecured to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or other parties covered in the
register maintained under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”). Accordingly, the
provisions of clause 3(iii) (a), (b) and (c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no loans, investments, guarantees
and security given in respect of which provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act are applicable.
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(iv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.
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Titan Engineering & Automation Limited
Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

Vi.

vil.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any deposits
from the public within the meaning the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India, provisions of
Section 73 to 76 of the Act, any other relevant provisions of the Act and the relevant rules framed
thereunder.

We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to the rules
prescribed by the Central Government for maintenance of cost records under Section 148 of the Act
in respect of the products manufactured by the Company and are of the opinion that prima facie, the
prescribed accounts and records have been made and maintained. However, we have not made a

detailed examination of the records.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, amounts deducted/accrued in the books of account in respect of
undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax,
Goods and Services tax, Duty of customs, cess and any other material statutory dues have
generally been regularly deposited during the year by the Company with the appropriate
authorities. As explained to us, the Company did not have any dues on account of Sales tax,
Service tax, Duty of excise and Value added tax during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in
respect of Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Goods and Services tax,
Duty of customs, cess and any other material statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2020,
for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, there are no dues in respect of Income tax, Sales tax, Service tax, Goods
and Services tax, Duty of customs, Duty of excise and Value added tax which have not been
deposited by the Company on account of dispute.

viii. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not

ix.

Xi.

Xii.

defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings to financial institutions and banks. The Company did
not have any outstanding loans or borrowings from Government and there are no dues to debenture
holders during the year.

The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including
debt instruments) and term loans during the year.

To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no
material fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or

reported during the year.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based on examination
oftherecords ofthe Company, the Company has paid/provided managerial remuneration in accordance
with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the
Act.

According to the information and explanations given to us, in our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi
Company as prescribed under Section 406 of the Act. Accordingly, provisions of clause 3(xii) of the
Order are not applicable.
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Titan Engineering & Automation Limited
Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

xiii. Accordingto theinformation and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records

Xiv.

XV.

Xvi.

of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Section 188 of the Act,
wherever applicable, and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements
as required by the applicable accounting standards. The provisions of Section 177 of the Act are not
applicable to the Company.

Accordingto the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records
of the Company, the Company has not made preferential allotment or private placement of shares or
fully or partly convertible debentures during the year.

Accordingto the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records
of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or persons

connected with him.

According to the information and explanations given to us and in our opinion the Company is not
required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

forBSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 101248 W/W-100022

W v

kash Gup
Partner
Membership Number: 064597
UDIN: 20064597AAAABS8727

Place: Bengaluru
Date: 28 May 2020
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Titan Engineering & Automation Limited

Annexure B to the Independent Auditors’ report on the financial statements of Titan Engineering &
Automation Limited for the year ended 31 March 2020.

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid financial statements under
Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013

(Referred to in paragraph 2(A) f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date)

Opinion

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Titan Engineering
& Automation Limited (“the Company”) as of 31 March 2020 in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2020,
based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India (the “Guidance Note™).

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of
its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter
referred to as “the Act”).

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and
the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit
ofinternal financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were
established and maintained and whether such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal

financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of

internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of

such internal financial controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating

the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures

selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
\/ b{of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditors’ report on the financial statements of Titan Engineering &
Automation Limited for the year ended 31 March 2020 (continued)

Auditors’ Responsibility (continued)

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and procedures that
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

forBSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No. 101248W/W-100022

\(‘\M i

Vikash Gupt

Partner

Membership No.: 064597
UDIN: 20064597AAAABS8727

Place: Bengaluru
Date: 28 May 2020



Titan Engineering & Automation Limited
Balance sheet as at 31 March 2020
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Note As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment 3 17,110 15,969
Capital work-in-progress 3 80 378
Right-of-use assets 4 1,356 -
Intangible assets S 123 133
Intangible assets under development 14 6
Financial assets
(i) Loans receivables 6.1 287 236
(ii) Other financial assets 6.2 79 107
Deferred tax assets (net) 15 - 252
Income tax assets (net) 15 76 -
Other non-current assets 7 76 409
Total non-current assets 19,201 17,490
Current assets
Inventories 8 12,327 12,551
Financial assets
(i) Investments 9.1 3,956 -
(i) Trade receivables 9.2 9,704 5,251
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 93 998 1,767
(iv) Bank balances other than (iii) above 9.3 6 -
(iv) Loans receivables 9.4 182 202
Other current assets 10 2.224 2.354
Total current assets 29.397 22,125
TOTAL ASSETS 48,598 39,618
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 11 4,705 4,705
Other equity 12 20 608 24,212
Total equity 34,313 28,917
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities

(i) Lease liabilities 13 840 -
Provisions 14 999 918
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 15 619 541
Total non-current liabilities 2,458 1,459
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(i) Lease liabilities 16.1 219 -
(ii) Trade payables 16.2
- Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 234 29
- Total outstanding dues of other than micro and small enterprises 2,375 2,805
(iii) Other financial liabilities 16.3 1,718 1,602
Other current liabilities 17 6,330 4,080
Provisions 18 951 604
Current tax liabilities (net) 15 - 119
Total current liabilities 11,827 9.239
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 48 598 39618
Significant accounting policies 2

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
As per our report of even date attached

for BSR & Co. LLP for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Titan Engineering & Automation Limited
Firm Registration No.: 101248W/W-100022 (CIN: U33111TZ2015PLC021232)

-

Vikash Gupta R Vivekanandah S Subramaniam  Suresh Rengarajan Sariga * Gokul
Partner Whole-time Director & Director Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
CEO
Membership No.: 064597 DIN: 06563820 DIN: 01494407 Membership
No.: A39637
Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru  Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru

Date: 28 May 2020 Date: 28 May 2020 Date; 28 May 2020 Date: 28 May 2020 Date: 28 May 2020




Titan Engineering & Automation Limited

Statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31 March 2020

(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

Revenue from operations
Other income
Total income

Expenses:

Cost of materials consumed

Change in inventories of finished goods, stock-in-trade
and work-in-progress

Employee benefits expense

Finance costs

Depreciation and amortisation expense

Other expenses

Total expenses

Profit before tax

Tax expense:

Current tax

MAT credit (entitlement)/ utilization
Deferred tax

Total tax

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income

Items that will not be reclassified to statement of profit and loss

- Remeasurement of the employee defined benefit plans
- Income tax on above

Total other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income for the year

Earnings per equity share of INR 10
Basic and diluted (Rs.)

Significant accounting policies

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
As per our report of even date attached

for BSR & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 101248W/W-100022

\(\\@ 5

Vikash Gupta
Partner

Membership No.: 064597

Place: Bengaluru
Date: 28 May 2020

Note

19
20

21
22
23

24
25

15

27

(CIN: U33111TZ2015PLC021232)

ot

R Vivekanandah
Whole-time
Director & CEO
DIN: 06563820

Place: Bengaluru

S Subramaniam
Director

DIN: 01494407

Place: Bengaluru

For the year ended
31 March 2020

For the year ended
31 March 2019

46,233 34,321
132 241
46,365 34,562
22,488 18,727
784 (2,652)
8,535 7,475
60 130
1,880 1,542
4,806 3.534
38,553 28,756
7,812 5,806
1,812 1,530
252 (252)

78 24
2,142 1,502
5,670 4,304
(378) 14)
104 44
274) (170)
5,396 4,134
12.05 9.15

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Titan Engineering & Automation Limited

Suresh Rengarajan
Chief Financial Officer

Place: Bengaluru

Date: 28 May 2020 Date: 28 May 2020 Date: 28 May 2020

)

Sariga P Gokul
Company Secretary

Membership
No.: A39637

Place: Bengaluru
Date: 28 May 2020




Titan Engincering & Automation Limited
Statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 March 2020
(Al amounis in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stafed)

Particulars

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax

Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortisation

(Gain)/loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment (net)

Finance costs

Allowance for doubtful trade receivables

Income from trade investments

Interest income on demand deposits

Net exchange differences (unrealised)

(Income)/loss arising on fair valuation of employee loans, leases and investments

Change in operating assets and liabilities
(Increase)/Decrease in trade receivables
(Increase)/Decrease in inventories
(Increase)/Decrease in other financial assets
(Increase)/Decrease in other assets

Increase /(Decrease) in trade payables

Increase /(Decrenase) in provisions

Increase /(Decrease) in other financial liabilities
Increase/(decrease) in other current liabilities
Cash generated from/ (used in) operations
Income taxes (paid)/ refund

Net cash generated from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equ ipment including intangibles
and capital work in progress

Interest received

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment

Bank deposits placed

Purchases of investments, net

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Repayment of borrowings

Payment of lease liabilities

Finance cost

Net cash used in financing activities

Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year (refer note 9.3)
Cash and eash equivalents at the end of the year (refer note 9.3)

Significant accounting pol icies

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
As per our report of even date attached
for BSR & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registratjon No {1248\&!’!\1\1-100022

i '

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

7,812 5,806
1,880 1,542
31 ©
60 130
73 149
46) -
(3) 10
221 29
(36) (16)
9,987 7,621
(4,311) 2,637
224 (4,245)
5 (28)
127 570
(282) (2,258)
179 341
(114) 1,274
2.250 2.110
(1,922) 401
(1,903) (1,403)
A 6,162 6,619
(2,594) 2,713)
8 10
52 21
(6) =
(3.883) -
B (6,423) (2,682)
i (2,051)
(448) -
(60) (130)
c (508) 2,181)
(A+B+C) (769) 1,756
1,767 11
993 1,767
2

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Titan Engineering & Automation Limited
(CIN: U331 11TZ2015PLC021232)

Vikash Gupta
Partner

Membership No.: 064597

Place: Bengaluru
Date: 28 May 2020

R Vivekanandah

S Subramaniam

Whole-time Director Director

& CEO
DIN: 06563820

Place: Bengaluru
Date: 28 May 2020

DIN: 01494407

Place: Bengaluru

Suresh Rengarajan
Chief Financial Officer

Place: Bengaluru

Date: 28 May 2020 Date: 28 May 2020

Sariga P Gokul
Company Secretary

Membership
No.: A39637

Place: Bengaluru
Date: 28 May 2020




Titan Engineering & Automation Limited

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 March 2020

(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

(a) Equity share capital

Opening balance

Changes in equity share capital during the year
Closing balance

(b) Other equity
Particulars

Balance as at 1 April 2018
Profit for the year (net of taxes)
Other comprehensive income for the year (net of taxes)

Balance as at 31 March 2019

Balance as at 1 April 2019

Profit for the year (net of taxes)

Other comprehensive income for the year (net of taxes)
Balance as at 31 March 2020

Significant accounting policies

See accompanying notes to the financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

for BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
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Vikash Gupta
Partner

Membership No.: 064597

Place: Bengaluru
Date: 28 May 2020

As at
31 March 2019

As at
31 March 2020

4,705 4,705

4.705 4,705

Reserves and surplus Total other equity

Securities Retained earnings Items of other
premium comprehensive income
(refer note 12)
18,754 1,321 3 20,078
- 4,304 - 4,304
- (170) (170)
18.754 5,625 (167) 24.212
18,754 5,625 (167) 24,212
- 5,670 - 5,670
- - (274) (274)
18,754 11.295 (441) 29.608
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Titan Engineering & Automation Limited
Significant accounting policies and notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

1. Background

Titan Engineering & Automation Limited (‘the Company') was incorporated on 24 March 2015 under the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) as a 100% subsidiary of Titan Company Limited to carry on the business of
precision engineering and automation including acquiring and taking over the whole or part of businesses which
the Company is authorized to carry on.

2. Significant Accounting Policies
This note provides a list of significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation
i. Statement of compliance

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standard
(“Ind AS”) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016 read with section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)
and other relevant provisions of the Act.

ii. Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis under the historical cost convention except for
the following that are measured at fair value as required by relevant Ind AS:

a) Certain financial assets and liabilities.
b) The defined benefit asset/ (liability) is recognized as the present value of defined benefit obligation less fair
value of plan assets.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and
services. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

iii. Use of estimates and judgement

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make estimates,
assumptions and judgement that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amount of assets
and liabilities, revenues and expenses and disclosure of contingent liabilities. Such estimates, assumptions and
judgement are based on management's evaluation of relevant facts and circumstances as on the date of financial
statements. The actual result may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and assumptions are reviewed on a periodic basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized
in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.

Assumptions and estimation
Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have significant risk of resulting in a material
adjustment in the year ending 31 March 2020 is included in the following notes:
Note 3 — Useful life of the Property, Plant and equipment;

Note 5 — Useful life of the Intangible assets;

Note 15 — Valuation of deferred tax liabilities;

Note 30 — Provisions and contingent liabilities;

Note 31 — Measurement of defined benefit obligations: key actuarial assumptions;
Notes 33 — Fair value measurement of financial instruments.

~




Notes to financial statements (continued)
iv. Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the Company operates (i.e. the “functional currency™). The financial statements
are presented in Indian Rupee, the national currency of India, which is the functional and presentation currency
of theCompany and is rounded off to the nearest lakh except when otherwise indicated.

v. Measurement of fair values

Certain accounting policies and disclosures of the Company require the measurement of fair values, for both
financial and non-financial assets and liabilities.

The Company has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values and the
valuation team regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments.

Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the
valuation techniques as follows:

- Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

- Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as far as
possible. If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into a different levels of the
fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same level of the fair
value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

Further information about the assumptions made in the measuring fair values is included in the Note 33 —
financial instruments.

vi. Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized upon transfer of control of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that
reflects the consideration the Company expects to receive in exchange for those goods or setrvices.

a) Sale of goods: Revenue from the sale of products is recognised at the point in time when control is
transferred to the customer.

Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration, net of customer incentives,
discounts, variable considerations, payments made to customers, other similar charges, as specified in the
contract with the customer. Additionally, revenue excludes taxes collected from customers, which are
subsequently remitted to governmental authorities

b) Service income: Service income is recognised on rendering of services.

Use of significant judgements in revenue recognition

e The Company’s contracts with customers could include promises to transfer multiple goods to a customer.
The Company assesses the goods promised in a contract and identifies distinct performance obligations in

the contract. ldentification of distinct performance obligation involves judgement to determine the
\( ﬁ/ deliverables and the ability of the customer to benefit independently from such deliverables.




Notes to financial statements (continued)
vi. Revenue recognition (continued)

e Judgement is also required to determine the transaction price for the contract. The transaction price is a
fixed amount of customer consideration. Any consideration payable to the customer is adjusted to the
transaction price, unless it is a payment for a distinct good from the customer.

e The Company uses judgement to determine an appropriate standalone selling price for a performance
obligation. The Company allocates the transaction price to each performance obligation on the basis of the
relative stand-alone selling price of each distinct good or service promised in the contract. Where
standalone selling price is not observable, the Company uses the expected cost plus margin approach to
allocate the transaction price to each distinct performance obligation.

Interest income is recognized as it accrues in the statement of profit and loss using effective interest rate
method.

The Company has determined that the revenues as disclosed in Note 19 are disaggregated into categories that
depict how the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows are affected by economic
factors.

vii. Leases

Till 31 March 2019, Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Rental expense from operating leases is generally recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease. However, where the rentals are Structured solely to increase in line with expected general
inflation to compensate for the lessor's expected inflationary costs, such increases are recognised in the year in
which such benefits accrue. Contingent rentals, if any, arising under operating leases are recognised as an
expense in the period in which they are incurred.

From 1 April 2019, the Company has applied Ind AS 116, “Leases” using the modified retrospective approach,
under which the cumulative effect of initial application is recognised in the retained earnings as at 1 April 2019.
Accordingly, the comparative information presented for 31 March 2019 is not restated i.e. it is presented, as
previously reported.

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period in exchange of consideration.

Company as a Lessee

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases except for short-term
leases. The Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the
right to use the underlying assets. The nature of expenses related to those leases has changed from lease rent in
previous periods to (i) amortization for the right-to-use asset, and (ii) interest accrued on lease liability.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following;:
i) the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability

ii) any initial direct costs

iii) restoration costs

\l &Riglﬂ-nr'—use assets are depreciated over the lease term on a straight-line basis.
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Notes to financial statements (continued)
vii. Leases (continued)

b) Lease Liabilities:

Lease liabilities are measured at present value of following components:

i) fixed payments less any lease incentives receivable

ii) amounts expected to be payable by the Company under residual value guarantee

Incremental borrowing rate used for discounting has been determined by taking the interest rates obtained from
financial institutions for borrowing the similar value of right of use assets for similar tenure for Titan Company
Limited plus 15 basis points considering the nature and associated risk of the business. The rates will be
reassessed on a yearly basis at the beginning of each accounting period to reflect changes in financial
conditions. In case of finance leases, lease liability is measured using implicit rate.

¢) Short-term leases:

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term lease contracts (i.e. those
leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase
option). Lease payments on a short-term leases are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.

viii. Foreign currencies

Transactions in currencies other than the entity's functional currency (foreign currencies) are translated at the
rates of exchange prevailing at the date of the transaction. At the end of each reporting period, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items
carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date
when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the period in
which they arise.

ix. Employee benefits

Short Term Employee Benefits

All short-term employee benefits such as salaries, wages, bonus, special awards and medical benefits which fall
within 12 months of the period in which the employee renders related services which entitles them to avail such
benefits and non-accumulating compensated absences are recognised on an undiscounted basis and charged to
the statement of profit and loss.

Defined contribution plan

Comparny's contributions to the Superannuation Fund which is managed by a Trust and Pension Fund
administered by Regional Provident Fund Commissioner and Company's contribution to National Pension
Scheme are charged as an expense based on the amount of contribution required to be made as when services
are rendered by the employees.

Defined benefit Plan

The contribution to the Company's Gratuity Trust are provided using the projected unit credit method, with
actuarial valuations being carried out at the end of each reporting period. Remeasurement, comprising actuarial
gains and losses is reflected immediately in the balance sheet with charge or credit recognised in other
comprehensive income in the period in which they occur. Remeasurement recognised in other comprehensive
income is reflected in retained earnings and is not reclassified to the statement of profit and loss.




Notes to financial statements (continued)
ix. Employee benefits (continued)

The contribution to the Titan's Provident Fund Trust is made at predetermined rates and is charged as an
expense based on the amount of contribution required to be made as when services are rendered by the
employees. The Company in the process of transferring the funds pertaining to the Company from provident
fund trust of Titan Company Limited.

Compensated absences

Compensated absences which are not expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the period in which
the employee renders the related services are recognised as an actuarially determined liability at the present
value of the defined benefit obligation at the balance sheet date.

x. Taxation

Income tax comprises of Current tax and deferred tax. It is recognized in the statement of profit and loss except
to the extent that it relates to an item recognized directly in the other comprehensive income.

a) Current tax: The Current tax is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from 'profit before
tax' as reported in the statement of profit and loss because of items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The Company's Current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

b) Deferred tax: Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised on temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit.

Deferred tax assets include Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws in India,
which is likely to give future economic benefits in the form of availability of set off against future income tax
liability. Accordingly, MAT is recognised as deferred tax asset in the balance sheet when the asset can be
measured reliably and it is probable that the future economic benefit associated with the asset will be realized

Deferred income tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences except in respect of taxable
temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures where the
timing of the reversal of the temporary difference can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets are not recognized, when the deferred income tax arises from the initial recognition of
goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and affects neither accounting
nor taxable profits or loss at the time of the transaction.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset
to be utilised.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which
the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
\1 }u amount of its assets and liabilities.
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Notes to financial statements (continued)
x. Taxation (continued)

The Company offsets deferred income tax assets and liabilities, where it has a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets against current tax liabilities, and they relate to taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either the same taxable entity, or on different taxable entities where there is an intention to settle the current tax
liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realized simultaneously.

xi. Property, Plant and Equipment

a) Recognition and measurement:

Buildings held for use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative purposes, are
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. Freehold land is not
depreciated.

Property, plant and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any.
The cost of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price/ acquisition cost, net of any trade
discounts and rebates, any import duties and other taxes (other than those subsequently recoverable from the tax
authorities), any directly attributable expenditure on making the asset ready for its intended use, other incidental
expenses and interest on borrowings attributable to acquisition of qualifying property, plant and equipment up
to the date the asset is ready for its intended use. Machine spare parts are recognised in accordance with this Ind
AS when they meet the definition of property, plant and equipment, otherwise, such items are classified as
inventory. Subsequent expenditure on property, plant and equipment after its purchase / completion is
capitalised only if such expenditure results in an increase in the future benefits from such asset beyond its
previously assessed standard of performance.

The estimated useful life of the tangible assets and the useful life are reviewed at the end of the each financial
year and the depreciation period is revised to reflect the changed pattern, if any.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected to arise from continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on disposal or retirement of an
item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

b) Depreciation

Depreciable amount for assets is the cost of an asset, or other substituted for cost, less its estimated residual
value. Depreciation is calculated on the basis of the estimated useful lives using the straight line method and is
generally recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Depreciation for assets purchased / sold during the year
is proportionately charged from/upto the date of disposal. Free hold is not depreciated.

The estimated useful lives of items of Property, plant and equipment for the current and comparative periods are
as follows:

Asset category Management estimate of | Useful life as per Schedule II
useful life
Building 30 to 60 years 30 to 60 years
Plant, machinery and equipment 10 to 15 years 10 to 15 years
Computers and servers 3 to 6 years 3 to 6 years
Furniture and Fixtures 5 years 10 years
'_Ofﬁce equipment 5 years 5 years
Vehicles 4 years 8 years

Based on technical evaluation and consequent advice, the management believes that its estimates of useful lives
as given above represents the period over which the management expects to use these assets. (b/

-
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Notes to financial statements (continued)
xi. Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)

When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as
separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment. Repairs and maintenance costs are
recognised in the statement of profit and loss when incurred. The cost and related accumulated depreciation are
eliminated from the financial statements upon sale or disposition of the asset and the resultant gains or losses
are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Advance paid towards acquisition of fixed assets outstanding at each balance sheet date is disclosed as capital
advances under non-current assets.

Capital work-in-progress includes cost of property, plant and equipment under installation / under development
as at the balance sheet date.

xii. Intangible assets

Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment. Intangible assets are
amortised over their respective estimated useful life’s on a straight line basis, from the date that they are
available for use. The estimated useful life of an identifiable intangible assets is based on a number of factors
including the effects of obsolescence, demand, competition and other economic factors (such as the stability of
the industry and known technological advances) and the level of maintenance expenditures required to obtain
the expected future cash flows from the asset.

The estimated useful lives of intangible assets are as follows:
Software - License period or 5 years, whichever is lower.

The estimated useful life of the intangible assets and the amortisation period are reviewed at the end of the each
financial year and the amortisation period is revised to reflect the changed pattern, if any.

xiii. Impairment

Impairment of financial assets:

The Company recognizes loss allowances using the expected credit loss (ECL) model for the financial assets
which are not fair valued through profit or loss. Loss allowance for trade receivables with no significant
financing component is measured at an amount equal to life time ECL. For all other financial assets, expected
credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month ECL, unless there has been a significant increase
in credit risk from initial recognition in which case those are measured at lifetime ECL. The amount of expected
credit losses (or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss allowance at the reporting date to the amount that is
required to be recognised is recognized as an impairment gain or loss in the statement of profit and loss.

Impairment of non-financial assets:

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible
assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the assets is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss (if any). When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the
Company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the assets are also allocated to
individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units
for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which gstimates of
future cash flows have not been adjusted. 7 CoN\ L/




Notes to financial statements (continued)
xiii. Impairment (continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset (or cash generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment
loss is recognised immediately in the statement of profit and loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash generating unit) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset (or cash generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of impairment loss is recognised immediately in the
statement of profit and loss.

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible
assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the assets is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss (if any). When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the
Company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the assets are also atlocated to
individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units
for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which estimates of
future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset (or cash generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment
loss is recognised immediately in the statement of profit and loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash generating unit) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset (or cash generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of impairment loss is recognised immediately in the
statement of profit and loss.

xiv. Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value. Cost is determined as follows:

a) Stores and spares, loose tools and raw materials are valued on a moving weighted average rate.

b) Work-in-progress and finished goods are valued on full absorption cost method based on the average cost of
production.

Cost comprises all costs of purchase including duties and taxes (other than those subsequently recoverable by the
Company), freight inwards and other expenditure directly attributable to acquisition. Work-in-progress and
finished goods include appropriate proportion of overheads and, where applicable, exciseduty.

Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price for inventories less estimated costs of completion and

\(ﬁ/ costs necessary to make the sale. A/
’ d h‘-‘-‘\'
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Notes to financial statements (continued)
xv. Provisions and contingencies

Provisions: A provision is recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past events and
it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable
estimate can be made.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the
obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its
carrying amount in the present value of those cash flows (when the effect of time value of money is material).

Product warranty expenses: Product warranty costs are determined based on past experience and provided for
in the year of sale.

Contingent liabilities: A disclosure for contingent liabilities is made where there is a possible obligation or a
present obligation that may probably not require an outflow of resources. When there is a possible or a present
obligation where the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made in the
financial statements.

Provision for onerous contracts. i.e. contracts where the expected unavoidable cost of meeting the obligations
under the contract exceed the economic benefits expected to be received under it, are recognised when it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle a present
obligation as a result of an obligating event based on a reliable estimate of such obligation.

xvi. Financial instruments
Recognition of financial assets and financial liabilities:

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets and liabilities are initially recognised at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to financial assets and liabilities [other than financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value
through profit and loss (FVTPL)] are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
liabilities, as appropriate on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to acquisition of financial
assets or liabilities measured at FVTPL are recognised immediately in the statement of profit and loss.

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value,
depending on the classification of financial assets.

A) Financial Assets
Classification of financial assets:

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified at

(i) Amortised cost

(ii) Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)
(iii) Fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)

’




Notes to financial statements (continued)
xvi. Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the
Company changes its business model for managing financial assets.

(i) Financial assets carried at amortized cost

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if both of the following conditions are met:

a) the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows and

b) the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding

(ii)Financial assets at fair value through comprehensive income

A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if it is held within
a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial
assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

(iii)Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss

A financial asset that meets the amortised cost criteria may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition
if such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
arise from measuring assets or liabilities or recognising the gains and losses on them on different bases.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, with any gains or
losses arising on remeasurement recognised in the statement of profit and loss. The net gain or loss recognised
in the statement of profit and loss incorporates any dividend or interest earned on the financial asset and is
included in the 'Other income' line item. Dividend on financial assets at FVTPL is recognised when the
Company's right to receive the dividend is established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with
the dividend will flow to the entity, the dividend does not represent a recovery of part of the cost of the
investment and the amount of dividend can be measured reliably.

B) Financial liabilities: classification and subsequent measurement:

Financial liabilities carried at amortized cost

Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method. For trade and
other payables maturing within 6ne year from the balance sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fair
value due to the short maturity of these instruments.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss
A financial liabilities which is not classified in any of the above categories are subsequently carried at fair value

through profit or loss.
Derecognition

Financial assets

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial
asset expire, or it transfers the right to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially
all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial assets are transferred or in which the Company neither
transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain cnnrul of the

\f 5{ financial asset. -
“ d %/953\
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Notes to financial statements (continued)
xvi. Financial instruments (continued)

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognized on its balance sheet, but retains
either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred assets are not
derecognized.

Financial liabilities

The Company derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, or
expire. The Company also derecognizes a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows
under the modified terms are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the modified
terms is recognized at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
extinguished and a new financial liability with modified terns is recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

xvii. Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using indirect method, whereby net profits before tax is adjusted for the effects of
transactions of a non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments and
items of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows from regular
revenue generating (operating activities), investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated.

xviii. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, demand deposits with banks, other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or less.

xix, Earnings per share

Basic Earnings Per Share (‘EPS’) is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity shareholders
by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per share is
computed by dividing the net profit by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving
basic earnings per share and also the weighted average number of equity shares that could have been issued
upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as
of the beginning of the year, unless issued at a later date. In computing diluted earnings per share, only potential
equity shares that are dilutive and that either reduces earnings per share or increases loss per share are included.

xx. Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in the manner consistent with the internal reporting to the chief operating
decision maker (CODM).

The Company’s primary segment consists of Automation Solutions (previously called ‘MBA’) and Aerospace
and Defence (previously called ‘PECSA’). Secondary information is reported geographically.

Segment assets and liabilities include all operating assets and liabilities. Segment results include all related
income and expenditure. Unallocated represents other income and expenses which relate to the Company as a
whole and are not allocated to segments.
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3 Property, plant and equipmen(

Plant, .
Particulars Land Buildings | machinery and Computer and | Furniture and Qfﬁce Vehicles Total
. Servers fixtures equipment
equipment
Owned assets .
Gross carrying value
Asat 1 April 2018 670 5,534 10,130 469 610 261 129 17,803
Additions - 467 1,440 85 64 18 101 2,175
Disposals - - 53 7/ 14 3 32 109
Asat 31 March 2019 670 6,001 11,517 547 660 276 198 19,869
As at 1 April 2019 670 6,001 11,517 547 660 276 198 19,869
Additions - 246 1,942 320 342 26 53 2,929
Disposals - B 465 8 59 8 20 560
As at 31 March 2020 670 6.247 12,994 §59 943 294 231 22,238
Accumulated depreciation
Asat 1 April 2018 - 346 1,754 113 155 89 47 2,504
Depreciation expense - 200 963 129 105 51 45 1,493
Disposals - - 51 6 7 2 31 97
As at 31 March 2019 - 546 2,666 236 253 138 61 3,900
As at 1 April 2019 - 546 2,666 236 253 138 61 3,900
Depreciation expense - 215 1,072 174 139 51 54 1,705
Disposals - - 390 8 55 7 17 477
As at 31 March 2020 - 761 3,348 402 337 182 98 5,128
Net carrying value
As at 31 March 2019 670 5455 8,851 311 407 138 137 15,969
As at 31 March 2020 670 5,486 9,646 457 606 112 133 17,110
Particulars Capital work-in
Progress
Asat | April 2018 87
Additions 2,324
Capitalisations 2033
As at 31 March 2019 378
Asat 1 April 2019 378
Additions 3,718
Capitalisations 4,016
As nt 31 March 2020 80 |

.
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4  Right-of-use assets*
Particulars Building Land| Plant & machinery Total
Asat 1 April 2019 - Transition impact of Ind AS 116 - - - -
Additions 44 252 1,170 1,466
Modifications / terminations - - - -
As at 31 March 2020 44 252 1,170 1,466
Accumulated amortisation
Asat 1 April 2019 - Transition impact of Ind AS 116 - - - -
Amortisation expense 20 36 54 110
Modifications / terminations - - - -
As at 31 March 2020 20 36 54 110
Net carrying value as at 31 March 2020 24 216 1,116 1,356
*Also, refer note 29.

5 Intangible assets
Particulars Computer

softwares Toes

Owned assets

As at 1 April 2018
Additions

Disposals

As at 31 March 2019

As at 1 April 2019
Additions

Disposals

As at 31 March 2020

Gross carrying value

95 95
102 102
197 197
197 197

55 55
252 252

Accumulated amortisation

As at 1 April 2018 15 15
Amortisation expense 49 49
Disposals - -

As at 31 March 2019 64 64
As at 1 April 2019 64 64
Amortisation expense 65 65
Disposals - -

As at 31 March 2020 129 129

Net carrying value

As at 31 March 2019 133 133
As at 31 March 2020 123 123

2
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6
6.1

6.2

9.1

92

\4

v

Financial assets
Loans receivables

Particulars

Unsecured, considered good
Security deposits

Employee loans

Other financial assets
Particulars

Unsecutred, eonsidered good
Other ngsets (neludes electricity, telephone deposits)
Other non-current assets
Particulars

Unsecured, considered good

Capital advances
Deferred employee cost

Inventories

Particulars

Raw materials [refer (a) below]
‘Work-in-progress

Finished goods

Stores and spares

a) Included above, goods in transit
Raw materials

As at
31 March 2019

As at
31 March 2020

38 -
249 236
287 236
As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
79 107
79 107
As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
37 373
39 36
16 _A00
Asat As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
4,195 3,745
4,210 6,039
3,055 2,010
867 757
!2&37 12,551
209 123

(i) The cost of inventories recognised as en expense during the year is INR 23,272 lakhs (Previous year : INR 16,075 lakhs)
(i) The cost of inventories recognised as an expense includes INR 64 lakhs (Previous year: INR 43 lakhs) in respect of write down of inventory to

net-realisable value.
(iit) Refer point (xiv) under significant accounting policies for mode of valuation

Financial assets

Investments
Particulars As at 31 March 2020
Investments in mutual funds (Unquoted)- {at fair value

through profit or loss}

Name of the fund No of units Amount
Axis Liquid Fund - Direct Plan - Growth 1,07,590 2,371
ICICI Prudential Liquid Fund - Direct Plan - Growth 51,261 151
L&T Liquid Fund - Direct Plan - Growth 52,675 1,434
3.956
Aggregate value of unquoted investments 3,956

Trade receivables

Partlculars

Considered good - unsecured®
Less: Allowance for doubtful trade receivables

Credit impaired
Less: Allowance for doubtful trade receivables

#Includes dues from related parties - refer note 32

Vv

As at 31 March 2019

No of units

Asat Asat
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
9,704 5,251
9,704 5,251
213 147
(213) (147)
9,704 5251
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9.2

9.3

9.4

10

Vi

Trade receivables (continued)

The Company has used a practieal expedient by computing the expected credit loss
The provision matrix takes into account historical eredit loss experichce and adjusted for forward-looking nformati
allowance is based on the ageing of the days the receivables are due and the tates ad given in the provision matrix. The P

of reporting period as follows:

allowanee for trade recenvables based on a provision magrix.
ot The expected eredit loss
rovision matrix at the end

Ageing Expected eredit loss (%)
Domestic Exports
With in credit period 07 [
Less than | year 0% 0%
1to 2 years 30% 50%
2to 3 years 60% 100%
Qver 3 vears 100% 1000
Age of receivables Asat As at
March 31,2020 Marech 31,2019
With m ¢redit period 5,004 1,365
lgas than | year 4,409 3,453
1 to 2 years 371 PALE!
2to 3 years 100y 83|
Over 3 yeals 33 4
Movement in the expected credit loss allowance For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Balance at the beginning of the year 147 215
Movement in the expected credit loss allowance on trade receivables calculated at lifetime 66 (68)
expected credit losses
Balance at the end of the year 213 147
The concentration of credit risk is limited due to the fact that the customer base is large and unrelated
Cash and bank balances
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Balances with banks
- current accounts 998 462
- demand deposits - 1,305
998 1,767
Other bank balances
Fixed deposits held as margin money against bank guarantee 6 -
Total other bank balances 6 -
1,004 1,767
Loans receivables
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Unsecured, considered good
Security deposits 13 16
Employee loans 169 186
182 202
Other current assets
Particulars As at Asat
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Unsecured, considered good
Advances to suppliers 449 202
Prepaid expenses 62 172
Balance with revenue authorities® 1,582 1,851
Others assets (includes travel advances, employee dues) 131 129
2,224 2,354

* Balance with revenue authorities includes GST credits of INR 303 lakhs (Previous year: INR 1,01

transitional credit and deemed credit
i

4 lakhs) in respect to GST input credit,
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11

12

13

14

N

Share capital

Particulars As at Asat
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Authorised share capital
60,000,000 (Previous year : 60,000,000) equity shares of par value of INR 10 each 6,000 6,000
Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up shares
47,050,000 (Previous year : 47,050,000) equity shares of par value of INR 10 each 4,705 4,705
4,705 4,705

a) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares
The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of INR 10. Each holder of equity share is entitled to one vote per share. The
dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to approval by the shareholders at the ensuing Annual General Meeting

In the event of liquidation, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all
preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholder

b) Reconciliation of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Number Amount Nuomber Amount
Eynity shares with voting rights
At the beginning of the year 4,70,50,000 4.705 4,70,50,000 4,705
At the end of the year 4,70,50,000 4,705 4.70,50,000 4,705

¢) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% of a class of shares is set below and shares held by the Holding and fellow subsidiary
companics:

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Name of shareholder Number Yo Number %
Titan Company Limited - Holding company 4,70,50,000 100 4,70,50,000 100

d) Buy back of shares and shares allotted as fully paid up pursuant to contract(s) without payment being received in cash
There has been no buy back of shares and no shares have been allotted as fully paid pursuant to any contract without payment being received in
cash from the date of incorporation till 31 March 2020

Other equity
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Retained earnings 11,295 5,625
(Retzined earnings comprise of the Company’s prior years’ undistributed eamings
after taxes)
Securities premium 18,754 18,754
(Amounts received on issuc of shares in excess of the par value has been classified as securities
premium)
Other comprehensive income (441) (167)
(Represents actuarial gain or loss on remeasurement of defined benefit obligation)
29,608 24,212
Financial liabilities
Lease liabilities
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Lease liabilities {refer note 29} 840 -
840 -
Provisions
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Provision for compensated absences 999 918
999 918
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15 Income taxes
15.1 The following is the analysis of deferred tax asscts/(liabilities):

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Deferred 1ax assets 423 759
Deferred tax liabilities (1,042} (1,048)
(619} (289)
Particulars As at Recognised in  Recognised in OCI As at
1 April 2019 statement of 31 March 2020
profit and loss
Deferred tax liabilities
Property, plant and equipment (1,037) | - (1,036)
Intangible asset (11} 3 - (6)
(1,048) 6 - (1,042)
Deferred tax assets
MAT credit entitlement 252 (252) - .
Provisions for compensated absences and doubtful debts 419 (41) - 378
Compensation towards voluntary retirement 88 (56) - 32
Lease liabilities (net of Right-of-usc assets) - 13 - 13
759 (336) - 423
Net deferred tax asset /(liability) _(289) (329) - (619)
Particulars Asat Recognised in  Recognised in OCI As at
1 April 2018 statement of 31 March 2019
profit and loss
Deferred tax liabilities
Property, plant and equipment (820) (217) - (1,037)
Intangible asset - (1 = ()
(820) (228) - (1,048)
Deferred tax assets
MAT credit entitlement - 252 - 252
Provisions for compensated absences and doubtful debts 371 48 - 419
Compensation towards voluntary retirement 132 (44) 88
Lease liabilities (net of Right-of-use assets) - - - -
503 256 - 759
Net deferred tax asset /(liability) (317) 28 - (289)

15.2 Amounts recognised in statement of profit and los

Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Current tax 1,812 1,503
Deferred tax 78 224
Income tax of previous year - 27
MAT credit (entitlement)/ utilization 252 (252)
Income tax included in other comprehensive income on:
- Remeasurement of employee defined benefit plans (104) (44
Tax expense for the year 2,038 1458

15 3 The reconciliation between the provision of income tax and amounts computed by applying the Indian statutory income tax rate to profit before

taxes:
Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Profit before tax 7,812 5,806
Enacted income tax rate in India 2912% 29.12%
Computed expected tax expense 2,275 1,691
Effect of:
Expenses that are not deductible in determining taxable profit 72 3
Effect of change in income tax rates (189) -
Effect of temporary differences (16) 92
Effect due to MAT ] (310)
Others - 26
Income tax exp recognised in the stat t of profit and loss 2,142 1,502

From the Assessment Year 2021-22 relevant to the financial year 2020-21, the Company expects to exercise the option permitted under section

115BAA(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961 after satisfying the conditions contained in section 115BAA(2) as introduced by the Taxation Laws

(Amendment) Ordinance, 2019 Accordingly, the Company has computed deferred tax based on the rate prescribed in the said section, as deferred
V tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability is settled

/
/% Co
o
|
\\ S
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15

Income taxes (continued)

15.4 The following table provides the details of income tax assets and income tax liabilities as of 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019:

16
16.1

16.2

(a)

\b,

Particulars As at Asat
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Income tax assets (net) 76 -
Current tax liabilities (net) - 119
Net current income tax asset/ (liability) at the end of the year 76 (119)
Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Net current income tax asset/ (liability) at the beginning of the ycar (119) 8
Income tax paid 1,903 1,403
Current income tax expense (1,812) (1,574)
Income tax on other comprehensive income and others 104 44
Net current income tax asset/ (liability) at the end of the year 76 (119)

Financial liabilities
Lease liabilities

As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Lease liabilities {refer note 29} 219 -
219 -
Trade payables
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Trade payables
Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises {Refer note (a) below} 234 29
Total outstanding dues of other than micro and small enterprises * 2375 2,805
2.609 2,834
————

* Includes payable to related party amounting to INR 362 lakhs (Previous year: Nil), refer note 32

Disclosures required under Section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

There are no material dues owed by the Company to Micro and Smiall enterprises, which are outstanding for more than 45 days during the year
and as at 31 March 2020. This information as required under the Micro, Srnll and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 has been
determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the Company and has been relied upon by the
auditor

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

(a) the principal amount and the interest due thereon (to be shown separately) remaining unpaid - -
to any supplier at the end of the year;,
- Principal 234 29
- Interest
(h) the amount of interest paid by the buyer in lerms of seetion 16 of the Micro, Small and - -
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (27 of 2006),
(¢} The mmount of the payments made to micro and small suppliers beyond the appointed day 91 169
during the year
(d) the amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which has =
been paid but beyatid the appointed dny during the year) but without adding the interest specified
under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 20006,

(&)

(e) the amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year; and - 2

(f) the amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until - -
such dite when the interest dues above are actually paid (o the small enterprise, for the purpose of

disallownnee of a deductible expenditure under sectivn 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium

Enterprises Development Act, 2006.
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163 Other financial liabilities

Particulars

Payables on purchase of property, plant and equipment
Derivative instruments other than in designated hedge accounting relationships
Other financial liabilities

- Employee related
- Others (includes liability towards shortfall in PF trust, retentions, LIC and salary deductions

payable)
17  Other current liabilities

Particulars

Advance from customers
Statutory dues

18 Provisions

Particulars

Provision for compensated absences
Provision for gratuity {refer note 31}
Provision for warranty {refer note (a) below}

Note (a) Provision for warranty
Particulars

Balance at the beginning of the year
Provisions made during the year
Utilisations/ reversed during the year
\1 Balance at the end of the year
7/

As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
27 262
335 -
1,099 1,243
257 97
1,718 1,602
As at Asat
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
6,262 3,962
68 I8
6,330 4,080
Asat As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
281 133
390 287
280 184
951 604
As at Asat
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
184 165
245 110
(149) 91
280 184
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19 Revenue from operations
Particulars
Sale of products
Automation solutions
Aerospace and Defence

Income from services provided

Other operating revenues
- Sale of scrap

Yor the year ended
31 March 2020

For the year ended
31 March 2019

24,370 17.176
21,049 16,293
45,419 33,469
687 694
127 158
46,233 34,321

As per the requirement of Ind AS 115, the Company disaggregates revenue based on line of business (as given in note 26)

tmpact of COVID-19 (Global pandemic):

While the Company believes strongly {hat it has two distinctly different business segments and the impact on future revenue streams could

come migjorly from the following -

- Postponement of capex by customers and Airline industry demand will have impuct on
- Prolonged lock-down situation resulting in its inability to deploy resources at different

The Company has considered such impact to the extent known and available currently. However,

cantinuing process given the uncertamtics nssociated with its nature and duration.

20  Other income
Particulars
Interest from employee loans
Income from trade investments
Exchange gain
Miscellaneous income
21 Changes in inventories of finished goods, stock-in-trade and work-in-progress
Particulars
Closing stock
Finished goods
Work-in progress
Opening stock
Finished goods
Work-in progress
(Increase) / decrease in inventory
22 Employee benefits expense
Particulars
Salaries, wages and bonus
Company's cantribution to provident and other funds {refer note 31(a and b)}
CGratuity {reler note 31(c)}
Staff Welfare expenses
23 Finance costs

Particulars

Interest on borrowings

W Interest on lease liability

our busincsses
locations due to restrictions in mobility

For the year ended

the impact assessment of COVID-19 is a

For the year ended

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
29 26
46 -
- 180
57 35
132 241

For the year ended
31 March 2020

For the year ended
31 March 2019

3,055 2,010
4210 6,039
7,265 8,049
2,010 2,046
6,039 3,351
8,049 5397
784 (2,652)

For the year ended
31 March 2020

For the year ended
31 March 2019

7,290 6,472
332 299
142 98
771 606
8.535 7,475
For the year ended  For the year ended

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

25 130
35 -
60 130
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24  Depreciation and amortisation expense

Particulars For the year ended

For the year ended

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Deprecintion of property, plant and equipment (refer note 3) 1,705 1,493
Amortisation of right-of-use nssels {refer note 4) 110 -
Amoitisation of intangible assets (refor note 5) 65 49
1880 1,542
25 Other expenses
Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Agency labour 392 319
Power and fuel 544 512
Repairs and maintenance
- Buildings 78 103
- Plant and machinery 423 268
- Others 121 121
Professional and services charges 556 284
Advertising and seles promotion 13 29
Selling and distribution expenses 221 180
Insurance 62 34
Rent 9 26
Rates and taxes 126 94
Travel and conveyance 753 656
Bad debts written off 9 216
Less: Provision released (9) (216}
Provision for doubtful debts, net 73 149
Loss on salo / disposal / serapping of property, plant and equipment (net) 31 -
Expenditure on corporite socinl responsibility {refer niote (c) below} 62 17
Miscellancous expenses {refer note () and (b} below) 1,325 742
Commission to nan-whole-time Directors 17 -
4,806 3,534

(a) Includes exchange loss (net) of INR 282 lakhs (Previous year: Nil)
(b} Auditors remuneration comprises fees for audit of statutery accounts
Jakhs (Previous yenr: INE 3 {akha) and reimbursement of levies and expenses INR 2 lnkhs (Previous year: INR 1 lakhs).

(c) Corporate Social Responsibility:

INR 19 lakhs (Previous year: INR 15 lakhs), taxation matters INR 4

(i) Gross amount required to be spent towards corporate social responsibility by the Company during the year: INR 62 lakhs (Previous year:

INR 24 lakhs).
(i) Amount spent during the year on:
In cash Yet to be paid Total
in cash
- Construction/acquisition of any asset - - =
- On purposes other than above 62 0 62
' 62 0 62
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26

27

28

Segment information

1) Desaription of segments

The Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) of the Company examines the performance both from a product perspective and geography
perspective and has identified 2 reportable segments Automation Solutions and Aerospace and defence. The Company's Whole-time Director
and Chief Exgeutive Officer (CEQ) 15 the CODM.

Corporate (unallocated) represents assets and linbilities which relate 1o the company as whole and are not allocated 1o segments.

b) Segment revenues and profit and loss

Particulars Revenue Profit / (loss)
For the year ended For the year ended  For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Automation solutions 24,407 17,206 3,037 2,582
Acrospace and defence 21,826 17,115 4,835 3,354
46,233 34.321 7.872 5,936
Finance costs 60 130
Profit before taxes 7,812 5,806
¢) Segment assets and liabilities
As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Segment assets
Automation solutions 16,301 14,452
Aerospace and defence 32,221 24911
Corporate (unallocated) 76 252
48,598 39,615
As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Segment liabilities
Automation solutions 8,758 6,437
Aerospace and defence 4,908 3,601
Corporate (unallocated) 619 660
14,285 10,698
Geographical Segments:
Segment revenue from external customners, based on geographical location of customer:
Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Revenue
India 20,694 13,472
Outside India 25,539 20,849

The operating facilities of the company are commonly employed for both the domestic and export business, hence it is not possible to report
segment assets and capital exp diture by geographical segment.

Information about major cuytomers

tncluded in revenues arising from divect sales of INR 46.233 lnkhs (Previous year: INR 34,321 lakhs) are revenues of approximately

INR 6.268 lakhs (Previous year: INR 3,986 lokhs) which arose from sales to the Company's largest customer and revenues of approximately
INR 6,118 Inkhs (Previous year: INR 7,250 lakhs) which arose from sales to the Company's sccond largest customer. No other single customer
contributed 10% or more to the Company's revenue for the reported years.

Earnings per share
The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted earnings per share

For the year ended  For the year ended

Particulars

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Profit for the year (INR in lakhs) 5,670 4,304
Weighted average number of equity shares 4,70,50,000 4,70,50,000
Nominal value of shares (INR}) 10 10
Earnings per share - Basic and diluted (INR) 12,05 9.15

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for is INR 1,309 lakhs (Previous year:
INR 2,313 lakhs).
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29 Leases
291 Al ts T ised in bal sheet

(i) Right-of-use assets
Building

Land

Plant & machinery

(ii) Lease liabilities
Non-current
Current

292 A ts recognised in the st t of profit and loss

Particulars

(i) Depreciation and amortisation expense
Building

Land

Plant & machinery

(ii) Interest expense (included in finance cost)
(ii) Expense relating to short-term leases {refer note (2) below}

(a) Short-term leases has been accounted for applying Paragraph 6 of Ind AS 116-

statement of profit and loss.

(b) The total cash outflow for the year ended 31 March 2020 amounts to INR 483 lakhs.

293 The impact on the statement of profit and loss is as below:

Rent is lower by
Depreciation is higher by
Finance cost is higher by

The Company has discounted lease peyments using applicable incremental borrowing rate as at 1

liability.

Impact of COVID-19 (Glabal pundemic):

The Company docs not foreses any lorge-scale contraction in demand which could result
Company has entered with
factory, offiees which are long teril in nature and no material changes in terms of those leases are expec

employee base rendeting the sales and pllied function. The leases that the

29.4 The amount of lease commitment for short term leases as at 31 March 2020 is INR 9 lakhs (Previous year: Nil)

30 (a) Contingent linbilitics not provided for - INR 10 lakhs (Previous year: INR 80 lakhs) pe
by amending the earlicr notification, computation of the asseasable value, denial of input cre

(b) The Supreme court of India in thes month of February 2019 had passed a judgement relating to definition of wiges U
Act.1952, However, considering that (here are numerots interpretative issucs
measurement of the pravision for the earlier periods, the Company hns
interpretation of the said j 1o t. The Company will evaluate its position and update its provision,

\J the subject, The Company daes not expect any material impact of the same.

Note

13

Note

23
25

made a provision for pravident fan

relating to this judgement and in

As at
31 March 2020

24
216
1116

-

1,356

840
219

1,059

For the year ended
31 March 2020

20
36
54

Leases and accordingly recognised as expense in the

For the year ended
31 March 2020
59
(56)
(17
N

April 2019 i.e. 9.25% for measuring the lease

in significant downsizing of its operation and related
lessors are towards properties used as
ted due to the COVID-19.

rtain to excise duty (relating to denial of exemption
dit on service tax and excise duty)

nder the Provident Fund
the absence of relinble
d contribution based on it's
if required, on receiving further clarity on
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31 Employce benefits

a) Defined Contribution Plans

The contributions recognized in the statement of profit and Joss during the year are as under:

Particulars For the year ended
31 March 2020

For the year ended
31 March 2019

Superannuation fund 50 46
Employee pension fund 124 99
174 145
b) Defined benefits plans
The expense recognized in the statement of profit and loss during the year are as under:
Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Provident fund* 158 154
158 154

# Contributions are made 1o the Company's Employees Provident Fund Trust at predelermined mtes in accordance with

the Fund rules, The

n to make good the

interest Tate payable by the Trust to the beneficiaries is ns notified by the Gover The Company has sn obl

shortfall, if any, betsveen the retur from the investments of the Trust and the fiotified interest rate and recognizes such shortfall as an expense.
For the year ended 31 March 2020, thie Company has charged INR 131 lakhs (Previpus vear: INR: Nil), being the change in measurement of

defined benefit plans, in other comprehensive income dusing the year ended 31 March 2020 for the shortfall in the interest
{0 the beneficiaries as on the balance sheet date

¢) Giratuity (Funded)

payable by the Trust

The Company makes anunl contributions to The Titan Industries Gratuity Fund. The scheme provides for lump sum payment fo vested
employees at retirement, death while in employment, or on terminition of employment as per the Company's Gratuity Scheme. Vesting occurs

upon completion of five years of service.

The plan is a defined Benefit plan in noture which is sponsored by the Company and hence it underwrites all the risks pertaining to the plan. In
particular, there 18 2 vigk for the Compuny that an adverse salary growth or inadequate retums on underlying plan assets can result inan
increase in cost of providing these benelits to employees in future. Since the benefits are lump sum in nature the plan is not subject Lo any

longevity risks.

The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations were as follows:

Particulars For the year ended
31 March 2020

Discount rate (p.a.) 6.90%

Salary escalation rate (p.a.)

- Non-management 7.0%

- Management 8.0%

- The retirement age of employees of the Company varies from 58 10 65 years.
- The mortality rates considered are as per the published rates in the Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2012-14) Ult mble.

For the year ended
31 March 2019
7.70%

7.0%
8.0%

- Rates of leaving service (leaving service due to disability ineluded) at specimen ages are as shown below (Rate per annum):

Age (years) For the year ended

31 March 2020
21-44 6%
45 and above 2%

Components of defined benefit costs recognised in the statement of profit and loss are as follows:

For the year ended
31 March 2019
4%

2%

Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Current service cost 124 104

Interest on not defined benefit linbility/ (asset) 18 (6}

Total p t of defined benefit costs charge to the statement of profit and loss 142 98

Components of defined benefit costs recognised in other comprehensive income are as follows:

Particulars For the year cnded  For the year ended

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

Opening amount recogmised in other comprehensive income outside profit and loss account 172 42)

Remeasurements during the period due to:

- Changes in financial agsumptions 148 31

- Changes in demographic agsumptions [€1))] 0)

- Experience adjustments 1 104

. Actunl return on plan assets less interest on plan assets 25 79
\l Closing t recopnised in ide of st t of profit and loss 419 172

.




Titan Engincering & Automation Limited
Notes to the financial stntements for the year ended 31 March 2020
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

31
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Employce benefits (continued)

The current service cost and the net interest expense for the year are included in the 'Employec benefits expense’ line item in the statement of

profit and loss.

The remeasurement of the net defined liability is included in other comprehensive income,

The amount included in the balance sheet arising from the entity’s obligation in respect of its defined benefit plans is as follows:

Particulars

Opening net defined benefit liability/ (asset)

Expense charged to profit and loss account

Amount recognised outside statement of profit and loss
Employer contributions

Closing net defined benefit liability/ (asset)

Movement in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:

Particulars

Opening defined benefit obligation

Current service cost

Interest cost

Remeasurement due to

- Actuarial gains and losses arising from changes in financial assumptions

- Actuarial gains and losses arising from changes in demographic assumptions
- Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments

Benefits paid

Closing defined benefit obligation

Movements in the fair value of plan assets are as follows:
Particulars

Opening fair value of plan assets
Employer contributions
Interest on plan assets

Remeasurements due to actuarial return on plan assets less interest on plan assets

Benefits paid
Closing fair value of plan assets

Sensitivity analysis

For the year ended
31 March 2020

For the year ended
31 March 2019

287 (25)
142 98
248 214
(287) (0)
390 287

For the year ended
31 March 2020

For the year ended
31 March 2019

1,502 1,186
124 104
111 89
148 31
(37 z
111 103

(1 (1

1,958 1,502

For the year ended
31 March 2020

For the year ended
31 March 2019

1,215 1210
287 0
93 95
26) (79)
(1 (1)
1,568 1,215

The key actuarial assumptions to which the defined benefit plans are particularly sensitive to are discount rate and full salary escalation rate
The following table summarises the impact on the reported defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period arising on account of an

increase or decrease in the assumption by 50 basis points:

Discount rate

For the year ended
31 March 2020
Salary escalation

Attrition rate

Defined benefit obligation on plus 50 basis points 1,862 2,058 1,933
Defined benefit obligation on minus 50 basis points 2,059 1,862 1,982
Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation
Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
With in year 1 175 137
1 year to 2 years 117 40
2 years to 3 ycars 115 94
3 years to 4 years 80 107
4 years to 5 years 110 92
Over 5 years 4,045 3,776
The Company is expected to contribute INR 100 lakhs to the gratuity fund next year.
A split of plan assct between various asset clogses is a8 below:
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Quoted BB Unquoted Quoted Quoted
Government debt instruments 867 . 674 -
Other debt instruments 624 - 482 .
Entity's own cquity instruments 81 - 44 -
Others - (5) - 15
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32 Related parties:
i) Relationship
&) Holding company Titan Company Limited

b) Fellow subsidiaries Caratlane Trading Private Limited
Favre Leuba AG (Switzerland)
Titan Watch Company Hong Kong Limited (100% subsidiary of Favre Leuba AG)

¢c) Other related parties Montblanc India Retail Private Limited
Green Infra Windpower Theni Limited

d) Promoter of holding company Tata Sons Private Limited
Tamilnadu Industrial Development Corporation Limited

¢) Key Management Personnel Mr. R Vivekanandah, Whole-time Director & CEO
Mr. S Subramaniam, Director
Mr. Suresh Rengarajan, CFO (from 13-Jul-2019)
Mr.Vishwanath G Hegde, CFO (till 12-Jul-2019)
Sariga P Gokul, Company Secretary (from 7-Nov-2019)
Non - executive Directors

Mr. N Kailasanathan

f) Group entities Tata AIG General Insurance Company Limited
(Wherever there are transactions) Tata Consultancy Services Limited

Tata SmartFoodz Limited

Tata Teleservices Limited

915 Labs LLC

g) Post employee benefit plan entities Titan Watches Provident Fund
Titan Watches Super Annuation Fund
Titan Industries Gratuity Fund

i) Related party transactions during the year :

Relationship For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Revenue from operations
Titan Company Limited Holding company 2 96
915 Labs LLC Group entities 9 -
Tata SmartFoodz Limited Group entities 1,630 -
Purchases of services
Tata Teleservices Limited Group entities 4 -
Tata Consultancy Services Limited Group entities 36 29
Tata AIG General Insurance Company Limited Group entities 0.41 d
Reimbursement towards rendering of services / expenses
Tata Sons Private Limited Promoter of holding company 1 -
Mr. R Vivekanandah KMP 6 4
Miscellaneous expenses
Titan Company Limited Holding company 243 122
Service income
Titan Company Limited Holding company - 3
Key gerial personnel comp
Managerial remuneration* KMP 267 256
Commission and sitting fees KMP 10 -
Contribution to Trust funds
Titan Watches Provident Fund Others 664 519
Titan Watches Super Annuation Fund Others 46 38
Titan Industries Gratuity Fund Others 287 0.28
iii) Related party closing bal as on bal sheet date:
As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Outstanding - net receivable
Titan Company Limited Holding company - 48
Outstanding - net payable
Titan Company Limited Holding company 342 -

Note:
a} The above information has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the

Company and relied upon by the auditors,
\I b) The above figures do not include provisions for encashable leave, gratuity and pension, as, wﬁ't?anmm valuation are not available.
Xy, ', A
4 — .
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Employce bencfits (continued)

The current service cost and the net interest cxpense for the year are included in the 'Employee benefits expense' line item in the statement of

profit and loss.
The remeasurement of the net defined liability is included in other comprehensive income.

The amount included in the balance sheet arising from the entity's obligation in respect of its defined benefit plans is as follows:

Particulars

Opening net defined benefit liability/ (asset)

Expense charged to profit and loss account

Amount recognised outside statement of profit and loss
Employer contributions

Closing net defined benefit liability/ (asset)

Movement in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:
Particulars

Opening defined bencfit obligation

Current service cost

Interest cost

Remeasurement due to

- Actuarial gains and losses arising from changes in financial assumptions

- Actuarial gains and losses arising from changes in demographic assumptions
- Actuarial gains and losses arising from cxperience adjustments

Benefits paid

Closing defined benefit obligation

Movements in the fair value of plan assets are as follows;
Particulars

Opening fair value of plan assets

Employer contributions

Interest on plan asscts

Remeasurements due to actuarial return on plan assets less interest on plan assets
Benefits paid

Closing fair value of plan assets

Sensitivity analvsis

For the year ended
31 March 2020

For the year ended
31 March 2019

287 (25)
142 98
248 214
(287) ()
390 287

For the year ended
31 March 2020

For the year ended
31 March 2019

1,502 1,186
124 104
111 89
148 31
(37 -
111 103

€] (1

1,958 1,502

For the year ended
31 March 2020

For the year ended
31 March 2019

1,215 1,210
287 0
93 95
(26) (79)
€3] (11)
1,568 1,215

The key actuarial assumptions to which the defined benefit plans are particularly sensitive to are discount rate and full salary escalation rate.
The following table summariscs the impact on the reported defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period arising on account of an

increase or decrease in the assumption by 50 basis points:

Discount rate

Defined benefit obligation on plus 50 basis points
Defined benefit obligation on minus 50 basis points

Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation

1,862
2,059

For the year ended
31 March 2020

Salary escalation

2,058
1,862

Attrition rate
1,933
1,982

Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
With in year 1 175 137
1 year to 2 years 117 40
2 years to 3 years 115 94
3 years to 4 years 80 107
4 years to 5 years 110 92
Over 5 years 4,045 3,776
The Company is expected to contribute INR 100 lakhs to the gratuity fund next year.
A split of plan nsset between various asset classes is as below:

Year ecnded Year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Quoted Unauoted Quoted Quoted

Government debt instruments 867 674 -
Other debt instruments 624 482 -
Entity's own equity instruments 81 44 -
Others - (5) . 15
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32 Related parties:
i) Relationship
a) Holding company Titan Company Limited

b) Fellow subsidiaries Caratlane Trading Private Limited
Favre Leuba AG (Switzerland)
Titan Watch Company Hong Kong Limited (100% subsidiary of Favre Leuba AG)

c) Other related parties Montblanc India Retail Private Limited
Green Infra Windpower Theni Limited

d) Promoter of holding company Tata Sons Private Limited
Tamilnadu Industrial Development Corporation Limited

¢) Key Management Personnel Mr., R Vivekanandah, Whole-time Director & CEO
Mr. S Subramaniam, Director
Mr, Suresh Rengarajan, CFO (from 13-Jul-2019)
Mr.Vishwanath G Hegde, CFO (1ill 12-Jul-2019)
Sariga P Gokul, Company Secretary (from 7-Nov-2019)
Non - executive Directors
Mr. N Kailasanathan

f) Group entities Tata AIG General Insurance Company Limited
(Wherever there are transactions) Tata Consultancy Services Limited

Tata SmartFoodz Limited

Tata Teleservices Limited

915 Labs LLC

8) Post employee benefit plan entities Titan Watches Provident Fund
Titan Watches Super Annuation Fund

Titan Industries Gratuity Fund
ii) Related party transactions during the year ;|
Relationship For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Revenue from operations
Titan Company Limited Holding company 2 96
915 Lebs LLC Group entities 9 -
Tata SmartFoodz Limited Group entities 1,630 -
Purchases of services
Tata Teleservices Limited Group entities 4 -
Tata Consultancy Services Limited Group entities 36 29
Tata AIG General Insurance Company Limited Group entities 041 7
Reimbursement towards rendering of services / expenses
Tata Sons Private Limited Promoter of holding company 1 -
Mr. R Vivekanandah KMP 6 4
Miscellaneous expenses
Titan Company Limited Holding company 243 122
Service income
Titan Company Limited Holding company - 3
Key gerial personnel comp
Managerial remuneration® KMP 267 256
Commission and sitting fees KMP 10 -
Contribution to Trust funds
Titan Watches Provident Fund Others 664 519
Titan Watches Super Annuation Fund Others 46 38
Titan Industries Gratuity Fund Others 287 0.28
iii) Related party closing bal as on bal sheet date:
As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Outstanding - net receivable
Titan Company Limited Holding company - 48
Outstanding - net payable
Titan Company Limited Holding company 342 .

Note:
a) The above information has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the

Company and relied upon by the auditors.
b) The above figures do not include provisions for encashable leave, gratuity and pension, as separate actuarial valuation are not available.
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33  Financlal instruments
33.1 Categorles of financial Instruments

Financlal assets

Particulars Asat Asat
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Designated as FVTPL-Equity investments and mutual funds 3,956 -
Total financial assets measured at FVTPL (a) 3,956 -
Measured at amortised cost

- Trade receivables 9,704 5251
- Cash and cash equivalents 998 1,767
- Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 6 -

- Security deposits 51 16
- Other assets 79 107
- Employee loans 418 422
Total financial assets measured at amortised cost (b) 11,256 7,563
Derivative instruments other than in designated hedge ting relationships (¢ ) - -
Total financial assets (a + b +c) 15212 7,563

Financial liabilities
Particulars Asat Asat
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Derivative instruments other than in designated hedge accounting relationships 335 -
Total financlal liabilities measured at FVTPL (a) 335 -
Measured at amortised cost

- Trade payables 2,609 2,834
- Lease liability 1,059 -

- Other financial liabilities 1,383 1,602
Total financial liabilities measured at amortised cost (b) 5,051 4,436
Total financial liabilities (a + b) 5,386 4,436

(i) Fair value hierarchy
This note explains about basis for determination of fair values of various financial assets and liabilities:

Particulars As at 31 March 2020

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
value

Financial assets

- Quoted investments at FVTPL = 3.956 - 3,956
Total financial assets - 3,956 - 3,956

Financial liabilities
- Derivative instruments other than in designated - 335 - 335
hedge accounting relationships
\/ Taotal financial llabilities - 335 -

335
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33.1

33.2

333

Financial instruments (continued)

(ii) Valuation technique used to determine fair value

Specific value techniques used to valuc financial instruments include:

- the use of quoted market prices for listed instruments.

- the fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts is determined using forward exchange rates at the
- the fair valuc of foreign currency option contracts is determined using option prices obtained from banks.

- the fair valuc of remaining financial instruments is determined using market comparable, discounted cash flow analysis.

sheet date

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Company

Credit risk is managed by the Company through approved credit norms, establishing credit limits, obtaining advances from customers and
continuously monitoring the creditworthiness of customers to which the Company grants credit terms in the normal course of business. On
account of adoption of Ind AS 109, the Company uses expected credit loss model to assess the impairment loss. Credit risk arises principally
from the Company’s receivables from customer. Refer note 9.2 for the disclosure for trade receivables.

Impact of COVID-19 (Global pandemic):

Financial instruments carricd at fair value as at March 31, 2020 is INR 3,956 lakhs and financial instruments carried at amortiscd cost as at
March 31, 2020 is INR 11,256 lakhs. The financial assets carried at fair value by the Company are investments in mutual funds and accordingly,
any material volatility is not expected. Financial assets of INR 1,004 lakhs as at March 31, 2020 carried at amortised cost is in the form of cash
and cash equivalents, bank deposits and earmarked balances with banks where the Company has assessed the counterparty credit risk. Trade
receivables of INR 9,704 lakhs as at March 31, 2020 forms a part of the financial assets carried at amortised cost, which is valued considering
provision for allowance using expected credit loss method. In addition to the historical pattern of credit loss, we have considered the likelihood
of increased credit risk and consequential default considering emerging situations duc to COVID-19. This assessment is not based on any
mathematical model but an assessment considering the nature of verticals, impact immediately seen in the demand outlock of thesc verticals and
the financial strength of the customers in respect of whom amounts are receivable.

Liquidity risk

The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, banking facilities and reserve borrowing facilities, by continuously
monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and by matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities. The company expects to meet
its other obligations from operating cash flows and proceeds of maturing financial assets.

Liguidity nnd interest risk tables:
The following tables details the Company's remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilitics with agrecd repayment

periods. The tables bave been drawn on an undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Company can
be required to pay.

Cantractual maturities of financia less thun 1 year more thun 1 vear Total

As at 31 March 2020

Non-derivatives

Trade payables 2,609 - 2,609
Lease liability 219 840 1,059
Other financial liabilities 1.383 - 1.383
Total non-derivative liahilities 4.211 840,00 5,051
Derivative instruments other than in designated hedge accounting 335 - 335
relationships

Total financial liabilities 4.546 840 5.386
Contractual maturities of financial liabilities less than 1 year more than 1 year Total

As at 31 March 2019

Non-derivatives

Trade payables 2,834 - 2,834
Other financial liabilities 1.602 - 1.602
Total non-derivative liabilities 4.436 - 4,436
Derivative instruments other than in designated hedge accounting - - -
relationships

Total financial liabilities 4.436 - 4.436
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33.4 Market risk
The Company is exposed to foreign exchange risk through its exports and imports in various forcign currencies. Exchange rate between the rupee
and foreign currencics has changed in recent years and may fluctuate in the future, Consequently, the results of the Company's operations are
affectcd as the rupec appreciates/ depreciates against these currencies

The carrying amount of the Company's foreign currency denominated monetary assets and monctary liabilities at the end of the reporting year are

as follows:
Currency Liabilitics as at Assets as at Liabilities as at Assets as at
31 March 2020 31 March 2020 31 March 2019 31 March 2019
USD 9 34 7 61
GBP 0.46 0.12 0 1
SGD 0.02 - 0 -
JPY 32 0.04 32 34
CHF 0.01 - 0 -
EUR 22 14 13 8

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis:

The Company is mainly exposed to USD and EURO. The Company's sensitivity to a 50 basis point increase and decrease in the INR against the
relevant foreign currencies is presented below:

The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items and adjusts their translation at the period end for
a 50 basis point change in foreign currency rates, There is an increase in profit or equity by INR 8 lakhs (Previous year: INR 24 lakhs) where the
INR strengthens 50 basis point against the relevant currency. For a 50 basis point weakening of thc INR against the relevant currency, there
would be a comparable decrease in profit or equity.

In management's opinion, the sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange risk because the exposure at the end of the
reporting period does not reflect the exposure during the year.

Impact of COVID-19 (Global pandemic):

The Company basis their assessment belicves that the probability of the occurrence of their forecasted transactions may be impacted by COVID-
19 pandemic. The Company has also considered the effect of changes, if any, in both counterparty credit risk and own credit risk while assessing
hedge effectiveness

34  The disclosures regarding details of specified bank notes held and transacted during 8 November 2016 to 30 December 2016 have not been made
since the requirement does not pertain to financial year ended 31 March 2020,

35  Capital management
The Company’s objective for capital management is to maximise shareholder value, safeguard business continuity and support the growth of the
Company. The Company determines the capital requirement based on annua! operating plan and other strategic investment plans. The funding
requirements are primarily met through equity and operating cash flows generated. The Company aims to manage its capital efficiently so as to
safeguard its ability to continue as a going concem and to optimise retumns to its sharcholder. The Company is not subject to any externally
imposed capital requirements.
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